Application: Family Life Academy Charter
School II1

Renee illemsen-Goode - rgoode@flacsnyc.com
2021-2022 Annual Report

Summary

ID: 0000000062
Labels: SUNY Trustees

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page
Completed Jul 30 2022
Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The nformaton s
collected in a survey format within Annual Report portal. hen entering information in the portal, some
of the following items may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related
items.

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2021-2022 school year are not required

to complete or submit an annual report this year).

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the
other tasks assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this
cover page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2022) or you may

not be assigned the correct tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION
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a. SCHOOL NAME

(Select name from the drop down menu)

FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL Il 800000082610

al. Popular School Name

FLAC 1l

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2021)

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2022 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks.

SUNY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

d. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

CSD # 7 - BRONX

e. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

7/2014

f. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION

9/2014
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c. School Unionized

Is your charter school unionized?

No

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

www.flacsnyc.com

i. Total Approved Charter Enroliment for 2021-2022 School Year (exclude Pre-K program

enrollment)

312

j. Total Enroliment on June 30, 2022 (exclude Pre-K program enrollment)

252

k. Grades Served during the 2021-2022 School Year (exclude Pre-K program students)

Check all that apply

Grades Served K, 1,2,63,4,5
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11. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION?

No

FACILITIES INFORMATION

m. FACILITIES

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2022-20237

No, just one site.

FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL I1l 800000082610

School Site 1 (Primary)
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ml. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Physical
Address

370 Gerard
Avanue
Bronx, NY
10451

Site 1

Phone Number District/CSD

718-665-2805

NYC CSD 7

5/36

Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming
year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

K-5

Receives
Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades
(If yes, enter
the appropriate
grades. If no,

enter No).

Yes, K-5


mailto:92.:11@:0

mla. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

School Leader

Operational
Leader

Compliance
Contact

Complaint
Contact

DA A
Coordinator

Phone Contact
for After Hours
Emergencies

mlb. Is site 1 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Private Space

Name

Rachel Cotto-
Nunez

Evelyn Castro

Karen Marino

Marilyn Calo

Dilys Afful

Rachel Cotto-
Nunez

Title

Principal

Chief
Operations
Officer

Sr. Mgr. for
Compliance &
Grant
Oversight

Chief Executive
Officer

Assistant
Pr nc pal

Principal

Work Phone

718-665-2805

718-588-0679

718-588-0679

718-588-0679

718-665-2805

646-554-1187
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Alternate

Phone

Email Address



IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired
certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in
district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of
occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on

or after July 1, 2021.

e Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year
2022-2023, the fire inspection certificate must be dated after July 1, 2021.

e If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the
Annual Report, please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on

November 1, 2022.

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

COO-Gerard.pdf

Filename: COO-Gerard.pdf Size: 4.7 MB

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2021-2022 SCHOOL YEAR

nl. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2021-2022 school year? (Please

include approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions).

Yes

7136



n2. Summary of Charter Revisions

Category (Select

Best Description)

Change in mission,
vision or
philosophy

Change in School
Name

More revisions to add?

No

Specific Revision Date Approved by
(150 word limit) BOT (if applicable)

The mission and
key design
elements were
revised to reflect
the addition of a
new high school in
the Ed Corp.

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if

applicable)

12/9/2021

o. Has your school's Board of Trustee's approved a budget for the 2021-2022 FY?

Yes

ATTESTATIONS
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p- Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. (To write type in a p one
number with an extension, please use this format: 123-456-7890-3. The dash and number 3 at
the end of the phone number refers to the individual's phone extension. Do not type int e
work extension or the abbreviation for it just the dash and the extension number after the

phone number).

Name Renee Willemsen-Goode
Position Chief Academic Officer
Phone/Extension 718-588-0679

Email rgoode@flacsnyc.com

p- Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President)
below attest that our school has reviewed, understands and will omply wit t e employee
clearance and fingerprint requirements as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO

Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click YES to agree.

Responses Selected:

Yes

q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President)
below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this
charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal,
State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand t at if any information in any part
of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds
for the revocation of our charter. Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the

stylus on your mobile device to sign your name).

Responses Selected:

Yes
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Signature, Head of Charter School

.

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Date

Jul 9 2022

Entry 3 Accountability Plan Progress Reports

Thank you.

Incomplete

Instructions
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SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY- Complete Template and Upload to Epicenter

SUNY-authorized charter schools must download an Accountability Plan Progress Report template at
Accountability Plan Progress Report. After completing, SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the
document into the SUNY Epicenter system by September 15, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED
CSO.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements

Incomplete

Required of ALL Charter Schools

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements and related documents in
PDF format into the SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to
NYSED CSO. SUNY-authorized charter schools are asked to ensure that security features such as
password protection are turned off.

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools must upload final, audited
financial statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2022. Upload the
independent auditor’s report, any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as
one submission, combined into a PDF file, ensuring that security features such as password protections
are removed from all school uploaded documents.

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as visible and optional task in the online portal until August 1
2022 but will be identified as a required task thereafter and due on November 1, 2022. This is a
required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Entry 4a - Audited Financial Report Template (SUNY)

Incomplete

Instructions - SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

SUNY-authorized schools must download the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Report
Template” at http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal/. After completing, schools must upload the
document into the SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to
NYSED CSO.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

Entry 4c - Additional Financial Documents

Incomplete Hidden from applicant

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial
documents and submit by November 1, 2022. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an

explanation if not applicable or available. For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because
the school did not expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 Threshold.”

1. Advisory and/or Management letter
2. Federal Single Audit
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3. CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1]
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per
school is $100,000.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

Entry 4d - Financial Services Contact Information

Incomplete Hidden from applicant

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter financial contact information
directly into the form within the portal by November 1, 2022.

Form for "Financial Services Contact Information"

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal

Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit School Audit School Audit Years Working With

Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone This Audit Firm

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial

services firm.

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years With

Person Address Firm

Entry 5 - Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget

Incomplete
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SUNY-authorized charter schools should download the 2022-23 Budget and Quarterly Report
Template and the 2022-23 Budget Narrative Questionnaire from the SUNY website and upload the
completed template into Epicenter. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED CSO. Due November 1, 2022.

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a copy of the
school’s FY22 Budget using the 2022-2023 Budget Template in the portal or from the Annual Report

website. Due November 1, 2022.

The assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-
explanatory. Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that
indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable
page number in Section I, C of the application narrative.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

Entry 6 - Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form

Completed ]Jul 30 2022

Due on August 1, 2022, each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter
school education corporation governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2021-2022
school year must complete and sign a Trustee Disclosure of Financial Interest Form. Acceptable signature
formats include:

e Digitally certified PDF signature (i.e., DocuSign)
e Manual signature (1. download to print, 2. manually sign, 3. scan signed document to PDF, and 4.
upload into portal)

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. The
education corporation is responsible for completing the form for trustees who left the board
during the reporting year.

Forms completed from past years will not be accepted. Only the latest version of the form (updated in
April, 2022) is acceptable.).

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to
complete a separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Disclosure
of Financial Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the
governing education corporation.

2021-2022 FLACS Board Signed Disclosures - 15 members

Filename: 2021 2022 FLACS Board Signed Discl mNt040A.pdf Size: 9.7 MB

Entry 7 BOT Membership Table

Completed ]Jul 30 2022

Instructions

Required of ALL charter schools

ALL charter schools or education corporations governing multiple schools must complete the Board of
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Trustees Membership Table within the online portal. Please be sure to include and identify parents who
are members of the Board of Trustees and indicate whether parents are voting or non-voting members.

Entry 7 BOT Table

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide
information for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees.

FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL Iil 800000082610

Authorizer:

Who is the authorizer of your charter school?

SUNY

1. 2021-2022 Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Trustee  Trustee Position Commit Voting Number Start End Board
Name Email on the tee Member of Terms Date of Dateof Meeting

Address Board Affiliatio Per By- Served Current Current s

ns Laws Term Term Attende
(Y/N) (MmM/DD (MM/DD d
/YYYY) YYYY) During
2021-
2022
Executiv
e, CEO
Evaluati
Miguel i 7/1/202  6/30/20
1 hai Tr Ye 2 |
Pena Chair Facilities Yes 0 1 29 5 or less
Fundrais
ing
Executiv
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Susana
Rivea-
Leon

Holda
Sanchez

Pedro
Alvarez

Raymon
d Rivera

Kevin
Kerns

Janet
Lerner

Wanda
Torres-
Marcado

Joseph
Holland

Vice
Chair

Secretar
y

Treasure
r

Trustee/
Member

Trustee/
Member

Trustee/
Member

Trustee/
Member

Trustee/
Member

e,
Account
ability,
Nominat
ion,
Facilities
, Bylaws

Executiv
e,
Account
ability,
Finance,
CEO
Evaluati
on

Executiv
er
Finance

Nominat
ion

Facilities

Nominat
ion

Finance,
Bylaws

Fundrais
ing,
Facilities

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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10

15

21

11

12

10

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

10

5 or less

5 orless



la. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees?

Yes
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1lb. Board Member Information

10

11

12

13

14

15

Trustee Trustee Pos t on
Name Email on the

Address Board

Bryan Trustee/
Rievra Member
Florence Trustee/
Wolpoff Member
Kelly Trustee/
Nunez Member
Rafael

Parent
McDona

Rep
Id
Marina Parent
Salazar Rep
Paula Parent
Vega Rep

Commit Vot ng Number

tee Member of Terms

Affiliatio Per By- Served

ns Laws
(Y/N)
Account
ability,
Fundrais Yes 5
ing,
Bylaws
Account
ability,
CEO Yes 10
Evaluati
on
Yes 5
Finance,
o Yes 4
Facilities
Yes 4
Yes 2
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Start
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD
YYYY)

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

End
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD
YYYY)

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

Board
Meeting
s
Attende
d
During
2021-
2022

5 or less

5 or less

5 or less



1c. Are there more than 15 members of the Board of Trustees?

Yes

1d. 2021-2022 Board Member Information

16

17

18

19

20

21

Trustee

Name

Jorge
Torres

Francisc
o]
Lugivina

Trustee

Email
Address

Position
on the

Board

Commit
tee
Affiliatio

ns

CEO
Evaluati
on,
Facilities

Voting Number

Start

Member of Terms Date of

Per By- Served
Laws

(Y/N)

Yes 3

Yes 21

Yes
Yes

No
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Current
Term
(MM/DD
YYYY)

7/1/202
1

7/1/202
1

End
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD
YYYY)

6/30/20
22

6/30/20
22

Board
Meeting
s
Attende
d
During
2021-
2022

5 or less

5 or less



2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to

all trustees.

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2022 15

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2021-
2022

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during

2021-2022

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws,
15
Resolution or Minutes

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2021-2022

10

4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2022-2023

Total number of Voting Members on June 30, 2022:

14

Total number of Voting Members added during the 2021-2022 school year:
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Total number of Voting Members who departed during the 2021-2022 school year:

Total Maximum Number of Voting members in 2021-2022, as set by the board in bylaws,

resolution, or minutes:

21

Thank you.

Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes

Incomplete Hidden from applicant

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2021-June 2022), which
should match the number of meetings held during the 2021-2022 school year, as indicated in the above
table. The minutes provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and
may be uploaded individually or as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted
by August 1, 2022.

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention
Completed Jul 30 2022
Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Describe the good faith efforts the charter school has made in 2021-2022 toward meeting targets to
attract and retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities (SWDs), English Language Learners
(ELLs), and students who are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for
meeting or making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2022-2023.

Entry 9 Enroliment and Retention of Special
Populations

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets
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Describe Recruitment Efforts in
2021-2022

Application and recruitment
efforts for all FLAC schools are
shared between all schools; all
schools benefit from this larger
outreach effort that will include
all four schools. To support these
efforts, both school and network
staff were utilized.

To attract economically
disadvantaged families, FLACS
specifically recruited students in
the community, which is likely to
have high populations of this
group. To recruit students who
are economically disadvantaged
FLACS:

Created attractive, informational
brochures and flyers both for
print and interactive for digital
distribution

Distributed these brochures and
flyers to local businesses,
religious institutions, pre-
kindergarten programs, and
other community organizations;
Visited and/or conducted virtual
presentations to prospective
families at pre-kindergarten
programs located in CSD 7 and 9;

21/36

Describe Recruitment Plans in
2022-2023

Application and recruitment
efforts for all FLAC schools will
continue to be shared between
all schools; all schools benefit
from this larger outreach effort
that will include all four schools.
To support these efforts, both
school and network staff will be
utilized.

Recruitment efforts for 2021-
2022 will incorporate a
combination of virtual and in
person.

To recruit students who are
economically disadvantaged
FLAC will:

Attend community and pop-up
events in areas that are
economically disadvantaged by
setting up informational booths.
Sponsor events within the local
community (i.e. Bronx Night
Market, Fordham Flea)
Establish partnerships with local
organizations (i.e. the Bronx
Rising, Morris Heights Health
Center, LPAC) to leverage
outreach amongst all our
subscribers/followers)

Continue to create print and
interactive informational
brochures & flyers

Building relationships through
social media by deciphering
influencers and cultivating
influencer campaigns to better
reach specific subgroups.
Distribute these brochures and
flyers to local businesses,



Economically Disadvantaged

Attended kindergarten virtual
school fairs, if any, at various
Head Start and pre-kindergarten
programs;

Attended Virtual Charter Open
Houses and chat groups

Held at least 10 virtual open
houses with translators; for
prospective applicants each year,
held at varying times (morning
and afternoon) using Eventbrite
to RSVP

Announced and advertised the
school and lottery in multiple
languages in local digital and
print media, (i.e. AMNY, Bronx
Times, El Diario) and in multiple
digital formats (i.e. mobile &
desktop take over, digital
billboards, footers, and dedicated
email blasts)

Created attractive, informative
exterior signage on all buildings
advertising all FLAC schools;
Maintained accurate information
on the school website, including
a link to the application;

Used social media to promote
the school and announce the
schools;

Used the New York City Common
Online Charter School
Application, which allows parents
to complete the application
online and has widened the pool
of applicants the school has
received, and is translated into
multiple languages;
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religious institutions, pre-
kindergarten programs, and
other community organizations;
Visit and or conduct virtual
presentations to prospective
families at pre-kindergarten
programs located in CSD 7 and 9;
Attend kindergarten virtual
school fairs, if any, at various
Head Start and pre-kindergarten
programs;

Attend Virtual and in person
Charter Open Houses and chat
groups

Hold at least 10 virtual and in
person open houses with
translators; for prospective
applicants each year, held at
varying times (morning and
afternoon) using Eventbrite to
RSVP

Announce and advertise the
school and lottery in multiple
languages in local digital and
print media, (i.e. AMNY, Bronx
Times, NY Post, Daily News, El
Diario) and in multiple digital
formats (i.e. mobile & desktop
take over, digital billboards,
footers, and dedicated email
blasts)

Announce and advertise in CTV,
TV and Radio (i.e.youtube, hulu,
Telemundo and CH12)

Create attractive, informative
exterior signage on all buildings
advertising all FLAC schools;
Maintain accurate information on
the school website, including a
link to the application;

Use social media to promote the
school and announce the schools
Use the New York City Common
Online Charter School
Application, which allows parents



English Language Learners

To attract english language
learners, FLACS specifically
recruits students in the
community, which is likely to
have high populations of this
group. To inform the community
about the school and recruit
students who are ELLs, FLACS
will:

Create attractive, informational
brochures and flyers both for
print and interactive for digital in
English and Spanish

Distribute these brochures and
flyers to local businesses,
religious institutions, pre-
kindergarten programs, and
other community organizations;
Create attractive, informative
exterior signage on all buildings
advertising all FLAC schools; in
both English and Spanish
languages

Announce and advertise the
school and lottery in multiple
languages in local digital and
print media, (i.e. AMNY, Bronx
Times, El Diario) in multiple
formats (i.e. mobile & desktop
take over, digital billboards,
footers, and dedicated email
blasts)

V sit and make virtual
presentations in English and
Spanish to prospective families
at pre-kindergarten programs
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to complete the application
online and has widened the pool
of applicants the school has
received, and is translated into
multiple languages;

To attract english language
learners, FLACS specifically
recruits students in the
community, which is likely to
have high populations of this
group. To inform the community
about the school and recruit
students who are ELLs, FLACS
will:

Produce Television commercials
on spanish channel stations.
Create bus shelter ads both in
english and spanish to be
displayed in various locations
within the community.

Work with radio stations to
create commercial spots in
spanish.

Create attractive, informational
brochures and flyers both for
print and interactive for digital in
English and Spanish

Distribute these brochures and
flyers to local businesses,
religious institutions, pre-
kindergarten programs, and
other community organizations;
Create attractive, informative
exterior signage on all buildings
advertising all FLAC schools; in
both English and Spanish
languages

Announce and advertise the
school and lottery in multiple
languages in local digital and
print media, (i.e. AMNY, Bronx
Times, El Diario) in multiple
formats (i.e. mobile & desktop
take over, digital billboards,



Students with Disabilities

located in CSD 7 and 9;

Involve parent “ambassadors” in
the planning for recruitment,
including having them help
disseminate information about
the school in the community, and
ensure that some of these
“ambassadors” speak languages
other than English;

Provide information about ELL
services when presenting about
the school;

Gather testimonials from current
parents in multiple languages to
post on various social media
platforms

Incorporate the use of Schola
(online recruitment service
platform) to assist in gathering
leads specifically aimed towards
ELL prospective families

Sending email blasts to our email
list serve on how to apply, and
why you should apply to our
schools (with translation options)
Work with the Latino Pastoral
Action Center (LPAC) outreach to
local religious and community
centers, including those with
immigrant and bilingual
populations.

To attract students with
disabilities, FLACS

will:

Making sure all videos are closed
captioned and ADA compliant
When presenting speaking
towards the various special
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footers, and dedicated email
blasts)

V sit and make virtual
presentations in English and
Spanish to prospective families
at pre-kindergarten programs
located in CSD 7 and 9;

Involve parent “ambassadors” in
the planning for recruitment,
including having them help
disseminate information about
the school in the community, and
ensure that some of these
“ambassadors” speak languages
other than English;

Gather testimonials from current
parents in multiple languages to
post on various social media
platforms

Incorporate the use of Schola
(online recruitment service
platform) to assist in gathering
leads specifically aimed towards
ELL prospective families

Sending email blasts to our email
list serve on how to apply, and
why you should apply to our
schools (with translation options)
Work with the Latino Pastoral
Action Center (LPAC) outreach to
local religious and community
centers, including those with
immigrant and bilingual
populations.

To attract students with
disabilities, FLACS will:

Showcase our building facilities
through images and video to
ensure how our schools are able
to accommodate physical
disabilities. Through signage, and
or structures (i.e. elevators,
ramps)

Making sure all videos are closed



needs services we offer in school

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Describe Retention Efforts in

2021-2022

To retain students, FLACS
provided a rigorous academic
program, demonstrated
continuous student academic
success, and provided a
nurturing and inviting
environment for families that
encouraged parents to keep their
children enrolled at FLACS.

To help promote the retention of
all students, FLACS schools:
Provided rigorous academic
curriculum and instruction;
Demonstrated and
communicated to families FLACS’
continued academic success;
Created a nurturing and safe
environment with consistent,
caring discipline;

Retained the sibling priority in
the lottery to keep children from
the same family together and
make school drop-offs and pick-
ups and schedules easier on
families;

Encouraged parent involvement
through workshops at the school,
award ceremonies, celebrations,
and participation in the parent
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captioned and ADA compliant
Include all special needs services
we offer when presenting to
prospective families

Describe Retention Plans in

2022-2023

FLAC will continue to employ
the strategies that it has to
retain families, as these have
been effective in the past to
retain families in the school. The
most essential aspect in ensuring
that FLACS meets its retention
targets is to provide rigorous
academic curricula, demonstrate
continuous student academic
success, and provide a nurturing
and inviting environment for
families that will encourage
parents to keep their children
enrolled at FLACS.

To help promote the retention of
all students, FLACS schools will:
Provide rigorous academic
curriculum and instruction;
Demonstrate and communicate
to families FLACS’ continued
academic success;

Create a nurturing and safe
environment with consistent,
caring discipline;

Retain the sibling priority in the
lottery to keep children from the
same family together and make
school drop-offs and pick-ups
easier on families;

Encourage parent involvement
through workshops at the school,



Economically Disadvantaged

teacher association;
Consistently communicated with
families about their
child/children’s academic
progress at the school through
use of an online communication
portal, ParentSquare and phone
calls;

Consistently communicated with
families about events, workshops
and general information on
ParentSquare, its website and
social media;

Ensured parents had access to
technology for video
conferencing and access to
online portals during this remote
year:

Reached out to and made
personal connections to all
families through the school’s
Family Liaison and other staff.

To help promote the retention of
economically disadvantaged
students, FLACS schools:
Engaged in staff training
(professional development, use
of outside organizations,
professional reading) to ensure
all staff is sensitive to the
challenges families in poverty
may face;

Removed economic barriers for
parents by providing technology
and internet for families who
needed this, ensured the
continuity of food services during
the remote period during the
pandemic; and:

Connected parents with social
services and other community
resources, in partnership with the
school’s community partner, the
Latino Pastoral Action Center.
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award ceremonies, celebrations,
and participation in the parent
teacher association;
Consistently communicate with
families about their
child/children’s academic
progress through use of an online
communication portal,
ParentSquare, phone calls, notes
in the homework folder, use of a
learning management system
that parents have access to,
report card distribution, and
parent conferences;
Consistently communicate with
families about events at the
school and the academic
program, through monthly
calendars, an up-to-date website,
live-streaming of school
performances, and monthly
newsletters with information
about the academic program;
and:

Reach out to and make personal
connections to all families
through the school’s Family
Liaison.

To help promote the retention of
economically disadvantaged
students, FLACS schools will:
Engage in staff training
(professional development, use
of outside organizations,
professional reading) to ensure
all staff is sensitive to the
challenges families in poverty
may face;

Remove economic barriers for
parents by providing
subsidies/waivers for school field
trips, uniforms, and other
potential costs for families; and:
Connect parents with social



English Language Learners

In addition to the strategies
listed above, to help promote the
retention of English language
learners, FLACS schools:
Deliberately recruited and hire
administrators, teachers, and
staff that can speak another
language when possible and
appropriate;

Recruited classroom and content
area teachers who possess dual
certification in their content area
and TESOL when possible;
Provided high quality support to
ELLs through the academic
program;

Ensured all teachers receive
professional development on
working with English language
learners;

Engaged families of ELLs through
specific workshops, including but
not limited to an initial
orientation of ELL services at
FLACS;

Ensured that all communications
(on ParentSquare, the FLACS
website, letters home, monthly
newsletters, handbooks, flyers)
were translated into Spanish
(and if there are other languages
represented in the school, FLACS
schools made every effort to
ensure translation of these
documents into additional
languages, or make use of the
NYCDOE phone translation
services to support parents in
understanding these
communications);
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services and other community
resources, in partnership with the
school’s community partner, the
Latino Pastoral Action Center.

In addition to the strategies
listed above, to help promote the
retention of English language
learners, FLACS schools will:
Deliberately recruit and hire
administrators, teachers, and
staff that can speak another
language when possible and
appropriate;

Recruit classroom and content
area teachers who possess dual
certification in their content area
and TESOL when possible;
Provide high quality support to
ELLs through the academic
program;

Ensure all teachers receive
professional development on
working with English language
learners;

Engage families of ELLs through
specific workshops, including but
not limited to an initial
orientation of ELL services at
FLACS;

Ensure that all critical
communications (on
ParentSquare the FLAC website,
letters home, monthly
newsletters, handbooks, flyers)
to families are translated into
Spanish (if there are other
languages represented in the
school, FLACS schools will make
every effort to ensure translation
of these documents into
additional languages, or make
use of the NYCDOE phone
translation services to support
parents in understanding these



Students with Disabilities

Provided translators for all major
school assemblies, graduations,
workshops; and:

Ensured that there were
translators available or that the
NYCDOE phone translation
services were utilized, for all
parent conferences.

In addition to the strategies
mentioned above, FLACS ensured
the retention of students with
disabilities by

Ensuring the consistent provision
of services entitled to the
students by qualified staff
Ensuring special education staff
reached out about student
progress on a regular basis
Ensuring all teachers received
professional development
effective strategies for working
with students with disabilities;
and:

Holding high expectations of
students with disabilities and
ensuring students and their
families understand that the
school is committed to having
these students succeed.

communications);

Provide translators for all major
school assemblies, graduations,
workshops; and:

Ensure that there are translators
available or that the NYCDOE
phone translation services is
utilized, for all parent
conferences.

In addition to the strategies
mentioned above, FLACS will do
the following to ensure the
retention of students with
disabilities:

Ensure the consistent provision
of services entitled to the
students by qualified staff
Ensure special education staff
reach out about student progress
on a regular basis

Ensure all teachers receive
professional development
effective strategies for working
with students with disabilities;
and:

Hold high expectations of
students with disabilities and
ensuring students and their
families understand that the
school is committed to having
these students succeed.

Entry 10 - Teacher and Administrator Attrition

Completed Jul 30 2022

Form for "Entry 10 - Teacher and Administrator
Attrition" Revised to Employee Fingerprint
Requirements Attestation
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A. TEACH System - Employee Clearance

Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office

of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes

paraprofessionals and other school personnel who are provided or assigned by the district of
location, or related/contracted service providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are
required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all students,
charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of individuals who have been
denied clearance. Once the employees have been terminated, the school must terminate the request for

clearance in the TEACH system.

In the Annual Report, charter schools are asked to confirm that all employees have been cleared through
the NYSED TEACH system; and, if denied clearance, confirm that the individual or employee has been

removed from the TEACH system, and is not employed by the school.

[1] Employees who must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors,
security personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school
building. This includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or
assigned by the district of location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED
memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-
schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf or visit the NYSED website at:
http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html| for more information regarding who

must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2.
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B. Emergency Conditional Clearances

Emergency Conditional Clearances

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for
prospective employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the
school’s emergency conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school
receives notification from NYSED regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all
prospective employees through the NYSED TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is
submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’'s emergency conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours

after approval by the board.

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency

conditional clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal.

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information

can be found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and F ngerprint Memo 10-2019.

Attestation

Responses Selected:

| hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements.

Entry 11 Percent of Uncertified Teachers

Incomplete Hidden from applicant
Instructions

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New
York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified teachers are those
not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of
Education.

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column. For example, a school
with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5.

Entry 11 Uncertified Teachers

School Name:
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Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified
Teachers

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance
with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified
teachers are those not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established
by t e NYSED Commissioner of Edu ation. Enter t e relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count
of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time

teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5.

If more than one line applies to a teacher, please include in only one FTE uncertified category. Please do

not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides.

CATEGORY A. 30% OR 5 UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS WHICHEVER IS LESS

FTE Count

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least
three years of elementary, middle or secondary
classroom teaching experience (as of June 30,
2022)

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are
tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June
30, 2022)

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years
of Teach for America experience (as of June 30,
2022)

. FTE count of uncertified teachers with
exceptional business, professional, artistic,
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2022)

Total Category A: 5 or 30% whichever is less 0
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CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER
SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION.

FTE Count

i. Mathematics

ii. Science

iii. Computer Science
. Technology

. Career and Technical Education

Total Category B: not to exceed 5 0

CATEGORY C: PLUS 5 ADDITIONAL UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS

FTE Count

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least
three years of elementary, middle or secondary
classroom teaching experience (as of June 30,
2022)

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are
tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June
30, 2022)

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years
of Teach for America experience (as of June 30,
2022)

. FTE count of uncertified teachers with
exceptional business, professional, artistic,
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2022)

Total Category C: not to exceed 5 0
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TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS (Sum of Categories A, B AND C)

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for

that category)

FTE Count

Total

CATEGORY D: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCATEGORIZED, UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for

that category)

FTE Count

Total Category D
CATEGORY E: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF CERTIFIED TEACHERS
FTE Count
Total Category E

CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides.

FTE Count

Total Category F

Thank you.

Entry 12 Organization Chart

Incomplete Hidden from applicant
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Instructions

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Upload the 2021-2022 Organization Chart. The organization chart should include position titles and
reporting relationships. Employee names should not appear on the chart.

Entry 13 School Calendar

Completed Jul 30 2022

Instructions for submitting School Calendar

Required of ALL Charter Schools

If the charter school has a tentative calendar based on available information and guidance at the time,
please submit with the August 1, 2022 submission. Charter schools must upload a final school calendar
into the portal and may do so at any time but no later than September 15, 2022.

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools
“... unless the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.”

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools also are required to submit school calendars that clearly

indicate the start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or

instructional days for each month. See an example of a calendar showing the requested information.
Schools are encouraged to use a calendar template and ensure there is a monthly tally of instructional

days.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

K-8 Calendar

Filename: K 8 Calendar 11KVIUW.pdf Size: 41.8 kB

Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on School Website

Completed Jul 30 2022

Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required
to submit item 5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline

Policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website.
Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items:

Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual Report);[1]

Board meeting notices, agendas and documents;

New York State School Report Card;

Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy_(For Regents,

NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY);

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency
Response Plan Memo;

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and

7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See NYSED Subject Matter List)

=W
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[1] Each charter school is required to make the Annual Report publicly available by August 1 and to post
on their respective charter school website. Each school should post an updated and complete version to
include accountability data and financial statements that are not or may not be available until after the
August deadline (i.e., Repost when financials have been submitted in November.)

Form for Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on
School Website

School Name: Family Life Academy Charter School Il

Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required

to submit item 4: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline
Policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its
website. Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items:
Link to Documents

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual
Report)

https://www.flacsnyc.com/apps/pages/index.jsp?
UREC ID=294280&type=d&pREC 1ID=677938

https://www.flacsnyc.com/apps/pages/index.jsp?
UREC ID=294280&type=d&pREC 1D=2093937

2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents

https://www.flacsnyc.com/apps/pages/index.jsp?
UREC 1D=294280&type=d&pREC ID=677938

3. New York State School Report Card

4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-
Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents,
NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter
Schools ONLY)

https://www.notapplicable.com

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level
safety plan (as per the September 2021
Emergency Response Plan Memo

https://www.flacsnyc.com/apps/pages/index.jsp?
UREC 1D=294280&type=d&pREC ID=677938

https://www.flacsnyc.com/apps/pages/index.jsp?
UREC ID=294280&type=d&pREC 1ID=677938

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy

7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example:
See NYSED Subject Matter List)

https://www.flacsnyc.com/apps/pages/index.jsp?

UREC ID=294280&type=d&pREC ID=677938
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Thank you.

Entry 15 Staff Roster

Incomplete Hidden from applicant

INSTRUCTIONS

Required of Regents and NYCDOE-authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Please click on the MS Excel Faculty/Staff Roster Template and provide the following information for ANY
and ALL instructional and non-instructional employees.

Use of the 2021-2022 Annual Report Faculty/Staff roster template is required. Each of the data
elements, with the exception of the Notes, are required, and use of the drop-down options,
when provided, is also required. Reminders: Please use the notes section provided to add any
additional information as deemed necessary. Failure to adhere to the guidelines and validations in the
Staff Roster Template will result in a resubmission of a fully corrected roster.

Please note the roster should include all staff employed any point from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022,
including those employed on June 30th.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DD3509A9-2AB1-4F70-B566-64A252DE9792

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Paula Vega

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Parent Representative

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

v Yes No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.

My children attend the FLACS MS.

My children would not benefit directly from my participation on the School PA
or the FLACS Board of Trustees as board decisions and overseeing are at the
level of the schools Executive leadership. the CEO and network team.

Page 1 0of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID: DD3509A9-2AB1-4F70-B566-64A252DE9792
Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Paula Vega

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DD3509A9-2AB1-4F70-B566-64A252DE9792

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

6.

- Paula Vega

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DD3509A9-2AB1-4F70-B566-64A252DE9792

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Paula Vega

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
. ; taken to
interest in the -
A avoid
organization P
; g conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DD3509A9-2AB1-4F70-B566-64A252DE9792

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Paula Vega

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

|
I Boagse 7/25/2022
&

Signature Date

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BDDC6F1C-2E89-43EA-9A48-95DADB2BBBCD

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Bishop Dr. Raymond Rivera

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Founding Chair, nominations committee chair, member

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

V1 Yes No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

Marilyn Calo, FLACS CEO is my wife

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes Y1 No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BDDC6F1C-2E89-43EA-9A48-95DADB2BBBCD
Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Bishop Dr. Raymond Rivera

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BDDC6F1C-2E89-43EA-9A48-95DADB2BBBCD

Family Life Academy Charter Schools ~ Bishop Dr. Raymond Rivera

6.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or
transaction, check None.

None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
;‘6‘%’1 ; As Founder and cF;’equge frorr;(.all t(het ) Raymond Rivera
-June, | president of ecision making (votes
30, 2022 LPAC. and of said properties
associated with
Highbridge
Facilities.

LPAC is Landlord
to FLACS |,

Highbridge
Facilities LLC.,is
Landlord to
FLACS Ill &
FLACS Il MS/
(FLACS 2B)
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BDDC6F1C-2E89-43EA-9A48-95DADB2BBBCD

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

- Bishop Dr. Raymond Rivera

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

None

Organization

Nature of

Approximate

Name of Trustee

for a total of
5,240,122.20

conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Steps
the school(s) conducted | household holding an
A 7 taken to
interest in the et
organization P
7 2 conflict of
conducting business T
with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
Latino Pastoral |L@ndlord/ || pac, FLACS [Raymond Rivera Recuse self
Action Center |tenant- | Lease - fromall
Rental 1,068,947.04 conversation
&
Highbridge
LLC, FLACS
Highbridge 2B Lease -
Facilities LLC., 2,630,416.66
& FLACS 3
Lease -
899,705.64
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BDDC6F1C-2E89-43EA-9A48-95DADB2BBBCD

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Bishop Dr. Raymond Rivera

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

(" K
k"j/"-w ﬁ/\(m\ 7/28/2022

Signature Date

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8A022E5B-DF56-4951-B60B-04C9585FDE40

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Dr. Janet Lerner

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

member

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8A022E5B-DF56-4951-B60B-04C9585FDE40

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Dr. Janet Lerner

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8A022E5B-DF56-4951-B60B-04C9585FDE40

Family Life Academy Charter Schools = Dr. Janet Lerner

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8A022E5B-DF56-4951-B60B-04C9585FDE40

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Dr. Janet Lerner

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Dr. Janet Lerner

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

Dr. Jandd (prmr 7/29/2022
Signature Date
Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF
last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 18F9DB62-04F3-4D2F-BFF3-960C16F26F 16

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Florence Wolpoff

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

accountability committee chair, member, CEO evaluation Committee

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 18F9DB62-04F3-4D2F-BFF3-960C16F26F 16
Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Florence Wolpoff

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 18F9DB62-04F3-4D2F-BFF3-960C16F26F 16

Family Life Academy Charter Schools = Florence Wolpoff

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 18F9DB62-04F3-4D2F-BFF3-960C16F26F 16

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Florence Wolpoff

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 18F9DB62-04F3-4D2F-BFF3-960C16F26F 16

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Florence Wolpoff

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

7/20/2022

Florunae Welpsff

Signature

Date

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 6CE6D0DE-A6DC-4ED0-943D-9F7DESDA9C7D

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Jorge Torres

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Parent Representative

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

v Yes No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.

my son attends FLACS III.

My child would not benefit directly from my participation on the School PA or
the FLACS Board of Trustees as board decisions and overseeing are at the
level of the schools Executive leadership. the CEO and network team.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 6CE6DODE-A6DC-4ED0-943D-9F7DESDA9C7D

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Jorge Torres

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 6CE6D0DE-A6DC-4ED0-943D-9F7DESDA9C7D

Family Life Academy Charter Schools = Jorge Torres

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 6CE6D0DE-A6DC-4ED0-943D-9F7DESDA9C7D

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Jorge Torres

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 6CE6DODE-A6DC-4ED0-943D-9F7DESDA9C7D

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Jorge Torres

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

Jovae Torves 7/29/2022
Signature Date
Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF
last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C5411B1C-B5C2-43A8-BESD-299AF373E23C

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Joseph Holland

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

member

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C5411B1C-B5C2-43A8-BESD-299AF373E23C
Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Joseph Holland

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C5411B1C-B5C2-43A8-BESD-299AF373E23C

Family Life Academy Charter Schools = Joseph Holland

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C5411B1C-B5C2-43A8-BESD-299AF373E23C

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Joseph Holland

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C5411B1C-B5C2-43A8-BESD-299AF373E23C

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Joseph Holland

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

@/M—Qj—) 7/18/2022
Signature Date
Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF
last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: F42330E6-AFFE-4EC3-9874-03CEE4C84DBD

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Kelly Nunez

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

member, previous parent representative - FLACS | PA President

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

v Yes No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.

My children attend FLACS | and FLACS MS

My children would not benefit directly from my participation on the School PA
or the FLACS Board of Trustees as board decisions and overseeing are at the
level of the schools Executive leadership, the CEO and network team.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: F42330E6-AFFE-4EC3-9874-03CEE4C84DBD
Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Kelly Nunez

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: F42330E6-AFFE-4EC3-9874-03CEE4C84DBD

Family Life Academy Charter Schools = Kelly Nunez

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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DocuSign Envelope ID: F42330E6-AFFE-4EC3-9874-03CEE4C84DBD

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Kelly Nunez

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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DocuSign Envelope ID: F42330E6-AFFE-4EC3-9874-03CEE4C84DBD

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Kelly Nunez

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

A
FIN) 7/25/2022
Signature Date

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 194EF186-E067-40A9-9DB1-B69C655E48B3

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Kevin Kearns

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

finance committee, Fac nominations committee chair, member

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes Y1 No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 194EF186-E067-40A9-9DB1-B69C655E48B3

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Kevin Kearns

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 194EF186-E067-40A9-9DB1-B69C655E48B3

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Kevin Kearns

6.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or
transaction, check None.

None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
;‘6‘%’1 ; As Founder and cF;’ec_uge fromk.all t(het ) Kevin Kearns
-June, |president of ecision making (votes
30, 2022 LPAC. and of said properties
associated with
Highbridge
Facilities.

LPAC is Landlord
to FLACS |,

Highbridge
Facilities LLC.,is
Landlord to
FLACS Ill &
FLACS Il MS/
(FLACS 2B)
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 194EF186-E067-40A9-9DB1-B69C655E48B3

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

- Kevin Kearns

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

None

Organization

Nature of

Approximate

Name of Trustee

for a total of
5,240,122.20

conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Steps
the school(s) conducted | household holding an
A } taken to
interest in the et
organization 7
; 2 conflict of
conducting business T
with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
Latino Pastoral |L@ndlord/ || pAc. FLACS |Kevin Kearns Recuse self
Action Center |t€nant - | Lease - fromall
Rental 1,068,947.04 conversation
&
Highbridge
LLC, FLACS
Highbridge 2B Lease -
Facilities LLC., 2,630,416.66
& FLACS 3
Lease -
899,705.64
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 194EF186-E067-40A9-9DB1-B69C655E48B3

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Kevin Kearns

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

M //W 7/27/2022

Signature Date

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 2FF45385-8225-49D6-AFAF-294328557B0E

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Pedro Alvarez

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Treasurer, Finance Chair, Chairman, Secretary, Vice Chairman,

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Pedro Alvarez

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools ~ Pedro Alvarez

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Pedro Alvarez

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Pedro Alvarez

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Pedie brares 7/18/2022

Signature Date

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: B189B8F5-9675-46A2-B292-48F5E64DBB53

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Rafael McDonald

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Parent Representative - FLACS Il PA President, finance committee member

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

v Yes No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.

My children attend FLACS Il and the FLACS MS

My children would not benefit directly from my participation on the School PA
or the FLACS Board of Trustees as board decisions and overseeing are at the
level of the schools Executive leadership, the CEO and network team.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: B189B8F5-9675-46A2-B292-48F5E64DBB53
Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Rafael McDonald

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: B189B8F5-9675-46A2-B292-48F5E64DBB53

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Rafael McDonald

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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DocuSign Envelope ID: B189B8F5-9675-46A2-B292-48F5E64DBB53

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Rafael McDonald

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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DocuSign Envelope ID: B189B8F5-9675-46A2-B292-48F5E64DBB53

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Rafael McDonald

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

Kafarl McDowald 7/27/2022
Date

Signature

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: B4158FB1-9927-4C06-8E6D-A180AFCOC84E

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:

Rev. Susana Rivera-Leon

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Vice Chair, accountability committee member, nominations committee member

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

V1 Yes No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

Marilyn Calo, FLACS CEO is my stepmother

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: B4158FB1-9927-4C06-8E6D-A180AFCOC84E

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Rev. Susana Rivera-Leon

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools ~ Rev. Susana Rivera-Leon

6.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or
transaction, check None.

None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
July As CEO of LPAC, |Recuse from all the Susana Rivera Leon
2021-June, |54 associated decision making (votes)

30, 2022 with Highbridge of said properties
Facilities.

LPAC is Landlord
to FLACS |,

Highbridge
Facilities LLC. is
Landlord to
FLACS Ill &
FLACS Il MS/
(FLACS 2B)
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools

- Rev. Susana Rivera-Leon

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

None

Organization

Nature of

Approximate

Name of Trustee

for a total of
5,240,122.20

conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Steps
the school(s) conducted | household holding an
A ; taken to
interest in the et
organization 2
; 2 conflict of
conducting business T
with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
Latino Pastoral |L@ndlord/ || pAc FLACS |Susana Rivera-Leon Recuse self
Action Center |t€nant - | Lease - fromall
Rental 1,068,947.04 conversation
&
Highbridge
LLC, FLACS
Highbridge 2B Lease -
Facilities LLC., 2,630,416.66
& FLACS 3
Lease -
899,705.64
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Rev. Susana Rivera-Leon

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

ML)‘&% 7/28/2022

Signature Date

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 4ADEE9DCF-C629-4887-9996-970B45EAA2EC

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Hilda Sanchez

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Secretary, CEO Evaluation Committee, Treasurer Committee Chair,
Accountability Chair

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Hilda Sanchez

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Hilda Sanchez

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Hilda Sanchez

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Hilda Sanchez

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

tilda Samcer, 7/18/2022

Date

Signature

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022

Page S of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3CA5AF6-BE68-4653-948D-A503903AA939

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Marina Salazar

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

member, parent representative FLACS MS PA President

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

v Yes No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.

My children attend the FLACS MS

My children would not benefit directly from my participation on the School PA
or the FLACS Board of Trustees as board decisions and overseeing are at the
level of the schools Executive leadership, the CEO and network team.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Marina Salazar

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools = Marina Salazar

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Marina Salazar

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest

Page 4 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3CASAF6-BE68-4653-948D-A503903AA939

Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Marina Salazar

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

7/28/2022

M S

Signature

Date

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C07804C-E77C-41A5-81C8-09DFF77AD71A

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Miguel Pena

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Board Chair, CEO Evaluation, Facilities, Treasurer, Secretary, Parent
Representative

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Miguel Pena

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools ~ Miguel Pena

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Miguel Pena

7. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Miguel Pena

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

Migwi Puna 7/29/2022
Signature Date
Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF
last revised 04/2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID: FOF97B08-0439-4615-93F3-442F5FDAD2A7

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee

Trustee Name:
Wanda Torres-Mercado

Name of Charter School Education Corporation:

Family Life Academy Charter Schools

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”)
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.).

Vice Chair, Treasurer, Fund Raising Committee Chair

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school
and/or education corporation?

Yes Y] No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school.

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation?

Yes v No

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the
student could benefit from your participation.
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Family Life Academy Charter Schools - Wanda Torres-Mercado

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation?

Yes LYl No
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could
benefit from your participation.

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO,
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real
or personal property to the said entities?

Yes |Y|No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
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6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or

transaction, check None.

v'| None
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to avoid Name of person
financial a conflict of interest, holding interest
interest / (e.g., did not vote, did or engaging in
transaction not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
you
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7 &

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization,
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was
no financial interest, check None.

/ None
Organization | Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee
conducting business | value of the and/or immediate
business with | conducted business family member of Stebs
the school(s) conducted | household holding an P
A ? taken to
interest in the .
o . avoid
organization 2
Z 3 conflict of
conducting business -
interest

with the school(s)
and the nature of the
interest
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This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The
personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:

Wanda Torves—Murads 7/18/2022

Date

Signature

Acceptable signature formats include:
e Digitally certified PDF signature
e Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF

last revised 04/2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Family Life Academy Charter Schools

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Family Life Academy Charter Schools (the “Organization”),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities and changes
in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Family Life Academy Charter Schools as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Family Life Academy Charter Schools,
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ ability to continue as a going
concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Family
Life Academy Charter Schools’ internal control. Accordingly. no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Family Life Academy Charter Schools” June 30, 2021 financial statements, and we expressed
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report date October 14, 2021. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021 is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it is derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 20, 2022 on our
consideration of Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Family
Life Academy Charter Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

WWM;’ o Lbf

Rochester, New York
October 20, 2022



FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSETS
Security deposits
Cash in escrow

Due from related party

JUNE 30, 2022

(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of capital leases payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefits
Vacation accrual
Deferred revenue

OTHER LIABILITIES
Capital leases payable
Deferred lease incentive
Deferred rent payable
Long term debt

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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June 30,

2022 2021
$ 13,511,734 $ 12,555,701
2,361,312 2,351,045
4,132,797 2,393,507
540,168 336,792
20,546,011 17,637,045
3,600,431 3,927,028
305,305 305,305
175,000 175,000
45,732 51,732
526,037 532,037
$ 24,672,479 $ 22,096,110
$ 53,843 $ 84,222
550,069 441,653
1,526,728 1,435,024
379,051 474,204
196,489 151,437
2,706,180 2,586,540
- 53,466
455,641 445,482
2,160,373 2,093,074
- 2,571,253
2,616,014 5,163,275
5,322,194 7,749,815
18,941,895 13,830,373
408,390 515,922
19,350,285 14,346,295
$ 24,672,479 $ 22,096,110




FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

Year ended June 30,

2022 2021
Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total Total
Revenue, gains and other support:
Public school district:
Resident student enrollment $ 23,095,338 $ - $23,095,338  $ 23,299,624
Students with disabilities 767,605 - 767,605 853,403
Grants and contracts:
State and local 116,688 - 116,688 146,371
Federal - Title and IDEA 1,188,671 - 1,188,671 1,307,586
Federal - other 3,990,965 - 3,990,965 1,042,804
Food service/Child Nutrition Program 1,059,986 - 1,059,986 553,501
NYC DOE rental assistance 4,130,064 - 4,130,064 3,806,099
TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND
OTHER SUPPORT 34,349,317 - 34,349,317 31,009,388
Expenses:
Program services:
Regular education 23,845,205 - 23,845,205 21,948,726
Special education 3,122,379 - 3,122,379 2.962.614
Total program services 26,967,584 - 26,967,584 24,911,340
Management and general 4,941,272 - 4,941,272 3,519,023
Fundraising and special events 177,839 - 177,839 172,410
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 32,086,695 - 32,086,695 28,602,773
SURPLUS FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 2,262,622 - 2,262,622 2,406,615
Support and other revenue:
Contributions:
Foundations 26,781 15,000 41,781 387,580
Individuals 8,528 - 8,528 4,445
Corporations 9,000 1,000 10,000 10,819
In-kind 1,333 - 1,333 8,375
Fundraising 505 - 505 180
Interest income 74,365 - 74,365 121,297
Gain on lease termination - - - 3,176,524
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness 2,571,253 - 2,571,253 -
Other income 33,603 - 33,603 -
Net assets released from restriction 123,532 (123,532) - -
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 2,848,900 (107,532) 2,741,368 3,709,220
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 5,111,522 (107,532) 5,003,990 6,115,835
Net assets at beginning of year 13,830,373 515,922 14,346,295 8,230,460
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 18,941,895 § 408,390 $ 19,350,285  $ 14,346,295

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided from operating activities:
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
Depreciation and amortization
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment
Gain on lease termination
Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
Grants and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefits
Vacation accrual
Deferred revenue
Deferred lease incentive
Deferred rent payable

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of certificates of deposit
Change in due from related party

NET CASH USED FOR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of capital leases payable
NET CASH USED FOR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH AT END OF YEAR

Year ended June 30,

2022 2021
$ 5,003,990 $ 6,115,835
(2,571,253) -
1,042,324 1,001,315
43,977 (42,623)
- (3,176,524)
(1,739,290) (699,201)
(203,376) 96,402
108,416 106,468
91,704 128,703
(95,153) 74,666
45,052 (59,600)
10,159 32,691
67,299 1,079,151
1,803,849 4,657,283
(759,704) (1,490,550)
- 67,497
(10,267) (26,750)
6,000 5,500
(763,971) (1,444,303)
(83,845) (118,082)
(83,845) (118,082)
956,033 3,094,898
12,730,701 9,635,803
$ 13,686,734 $ 12,730,701




FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, Cont’d

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

Year ended June 30,
2022 2021
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 12,689 $ 26,153
NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital lease payable incurred in connection with purchase
of property and equipment $ - $ 160,680

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Organization
Family Life Academy Charter Schools (the “Organization”) is an educational corporation operating in the
borough of the Bronx, New York and is comprised of various individual charter schools.

Family Life Academy Charter School I (“FLACS I”) is a charter school that operates under the Organization in
the borough of the Bronx, New York. On May 14, 2001, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of
New York granted FLACS I a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration.
On May 20, 2008, August 19, 2013 and February 13, 2018, FLACS I obtained a five year renewal, which expires
June 30, 2023. On March 17, 2022, FLACS I obtained a four year renewal, which expires July 31, 2027.

Family Life Academy Charter School II (“FLACS II”) is a charter school that operates under the Organization in
the borough of the Bronx, New York. On September 13, 2011, the Board of Regents of the University of the
State of New York granted FLACS II a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon
expiration. On March 8, 2017, FLACS II obtained a five year renewal, which expired July 31, 2022. On
March 17, 2022, FLACS 1I obtained a five year renewal, which expires July 31, 2027.

On March 31, 2014, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York amended the FLACS 1
charter agreement permitting additional schools under FLACS I’s educational corporation. During the 2014
fiscal year, FLACS I added Family Life Academy Charter School III (“FLACS III”) under its expanded charter.
FLACS III had the authority to operate through July 31, 2019. On May 27,2019, FLACS III obtained a five year
renewal, which expires July 31, 2024. On March 17, 2022, FLACS III obtained a three year renewal, which
expires July 31, 2027.

On June 6, 2019, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York amended the FLACS I charter
agreement permitting additional schools under FLACS I’s educational corporation. During the 2019 fiscal year,
FLACS I added Family Life Academy Charter School IV (“FLACS IV”) under its expanded charter. FLACS IV
opened in September 2022 as Family Life Academy Charter Schools High School (“FLACS HS”).

FLACS I, FLACS 11, FLACS 111, and FLACS HS are schools in a predominately Latino community in the South
Bronx. They seek to empower New York City English language learners in grades Kindergarten through Grade
8 to achieve high standards in English and to help them take responsibility for their own learning and encourage
them to explore and affirm human values. On March 16, 2022, FLACS HS revised its charter to serve grades 9
through 12.

Family Life Academy Charter Schools Network (“FLACS N”) is a division of the educational corporation
operating as a charter school management organization. FLACS N’s purpose is to manage and support a network
of open-enrollment free charter schools committed to high academic standards, merit, citizenship and
responsibility in New York City’s neediest neighborhoods.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of FLACS I, FLACS 11, FLACS III, FLACS HS
and FLACS N (collectively referred to as the “Organization”). All intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated in the accompanying financial statements.

- 10 -



FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

Basis of accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Classification of net assets

To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the Organization,
the accounts of the Organization are maintained in accordance with the principles of accounting for not-for-profit
organizations. This is the procedure by which resources are classified for reporting purposes into net asset groups,
established according to their nature and purpose. Accordingly, all financial transactions have been recorded and
reported by net asset group.

The assets, liabilities, activities, and net assets are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor-
imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The
Board of Trustees has discretionary control to use these in carrying on operations in accordance with the
guidelines established by the Organization.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor.
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled,
or both. Net assets with donor restrictions were $408,390 and $515,922 at June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from Exchange Transactions: The Organization recognizes revenue in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, as amended. ASU 2014-09 applies to exchange transactions with customers that are bound by
contracts or similar arrangements and establishes a performance obligation approach to revenue recognition.

The Organization records substantially all revenues over time as follows:

Public school district revenue

The Organization recognizes revenue as educational programming is provided to students throughout the
year. The Organization earns public school district revenue based on the approved per pupil tuition rate of
the public school district in which the pupil resides. The amount received each year from the resident district
is the product of the approved per pupil tuition rate and the full-time equivalent student enrollment of the
Organization. Each NYS school district has a fixed per pupil tuition rate which is calculated annually by
NYSED in accordance with NYS Education Law. Amounts are billed in advance every other month and
payments are typically received in six installments during the year. At the end of each school year, a
reconciliation of actual enrollment to billed enrollment is performed and any additional amounts due or
excess funds received are agreed upon between the Organization and the district(s) and are paid or recouped.

“11 -



FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

Additional funding is available for students requiring special education services. The amount of additional
funding is dependent upon the length of time and types of services provided by the Organization to each
student, subject to a maximum amount based upon a set rate for each district as calculated by NYSED.

Rental assistance

Facilities rental assistance funding is provided by the New York City Dept of Education (NYCDOE) to
qualifying charter schools located in the five boroughs of NYC. In order to receive rental assistance funding,
a charter school must have commenced instruction or added grade levels in the 2014-15 school year or
thereafter and go through a space request process with the NYCDOE. If NYCDOE is not able to provide
adequate space, the Organization can become eligible for rental assistance. Rental assistance is calculated as
the lesser of 30% of the per-pupil tuition rate for NYC times the number of students enrolled, or actual total
rental costs. As rental assistance is based on the number of students enrolled, revenue is recognized
throughout the year as educational programming is provided to students.

The following table summarizes contract balances at their respective statement of financial position dates:

June 30,
2022 2021 2020
Grants and contracts receivables $ 44,319 $ 44,183 $ 319411

Contributions

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to
give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a
measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been substantially met.

Contributions received are recorded as without donor restrictions or with donor restrictions depending on the
existence of any donor restrictions. A contribution that is received and expended in the same year for a
specific purpose is classified as without donor restricted revenue.

Contributions are recorded as with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose restriction
is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and
reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

Grant revenue

Some of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants,
which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenditures in
compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Certain grants are subject to audit and retroactive
adjustments by its funders. Any changes resulting from these audits are recognized in the year they become
known. Qualifying expenditures that have been incurred but are yet to be reimbursed are reported as grants
receivable in the accompanying statement of financial position. Amounts received prior to incurring
qualifying expenditures are reported as deferred revenue in the accompanying statement of financial position
and amounted to $196,489 and $151,437 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The Organization received
cost-reimbursement grants of approximately $5,797,113 and $146,970 that have not been recognized at

June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, because qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained in certain financial institutions located in New York and are insured
by the FDIC up to $250,000 at each institution. The Organization considers all highly liquid investments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. In the normal course of business, the
cash account balances at any given time may exceed insured limits. However, the Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash and cash

equivalents.

Cash in escrow

The Organization maintains cash in an escrow account, in accordance with the terms of its Charter Agreement.

A portion of the escrow account is invested in a certificate of deposit with a maturity date of July 2022.

Grants and other receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual
receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used
reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no allowance

for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2022 or 2021.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line
method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which range

from two to fifteen years.

Major renewals and betterments are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as
incurred. Upon sale or retirement, the related cost and allowances for depreciation are removed from the accounts

and the related gain or loss is reflected in operations.
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

Deferred revenue

The Organization records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, at

which time it is recognized as revenue.

Certificates of deposit

The Organization maintains its certificates of deposit at a financial institution. The balance is insured at the
financial institution up to $250,000 by the FDIC. At times the Organization’s balance may exceed federally
insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such account and does not believe it is exposed

to any significant risk. Certificates of deposit have a maturity date of July 2022.

Tax exempt status

The Organization is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and

applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income.

The Organization files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the years ended
June 30, 2019 through June 30, 2022 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS. Management of the
Organization believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it will not recognize any liability

for unrecognized tax benefits.

Contributed goods and services

The Organization receives contributed services from volunteers to serve on the Board of Trustees. In addition,
the Organization received transportation services, special education services and a school nurse for the students

from the local district. The Organization was unable to determine a value for these services.

The Organization received contributed professional development and programming services and contributed
goods which were valued at approximately $1,300 and $8,400 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. These amounts are included in in-kind revenue in the accompanying statement of activities and

changes in net assets.

Marketing costs

The Organization expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs

approximated $304,000 and $153,000 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2021

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net
asset class or functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s financial statements for the

year ended June 30, 2021 from which the summarized information was derived.
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

New accounting pronouncement - leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to leases to increase transparency and comparability
among entities by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities on the statement
of financial position. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of ROU assets and
lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under current U.S. GAAP. For nonpublic
entities, the FASB voted on May 20, 2020, to extend the guidance in this new standard to be effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2022. The Organization is currently evaluating the provisions of this standard to determine the impact the new
standard will have on the Organization’s financial position or results of operations.

Adoption of new accounting standard - gifts-in-kind

In September 2020, the FASB issued a new accounting update to improve transparency in the reporting of
contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as gifts-in-kind. The update requires not-for-profit entities to present
contributed nonfinancial assets separately on the statement of activities, apart from contributions of cash and
other financial assets. In addition, the update requires not-for-profit entities to disclose in the notes to the financial
statements a breakout of the different types of gifts-in-kinds recognized, any donor restrictions associated with
the gift, the valuation technique(s) used to arrive at the fair value measure, whether or not the gift-in-kind was
monetized, and any policies on monetization. The update is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2021 and is being applied on a retrospective basis. The Organization adopted this standard during the year ended
June 30, 2022. There were no material in-kind contributions for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Subsequent events

The Organization has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of
financial position date through October 20, 2022, which is the date the financial statements are available to be
issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted.

-15-



FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE B: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments. The Organization’s main source of liquidity is its cash and cash equivalents accounts.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of teaching and public service as well as
the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the Organization
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not
covered by donor-restricted resources. Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies the sources and uses
of the Organization’s cash and shows positive cash generated by operations for fiscal years 2022 and 2021.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use,
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following:

June 30,
2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,511,734 $ 12,555,701

Certificates of deposit 2,361,312 2,351,045

Grants and other receivables 4,132,797 2,393,507

Total financial assets available within one year 20,005,843 17,300,253

Less:
Amounts unavailable for general expenditures
within one year, due to:
Restricted by donors with purpose restrictions (408,390) (515,922)
Total amount unavailable for general

expenditures within one year (408,390) (515,922)

Total financial assets available to management
for general expenditures within one year ~ $ 19,597,453 $ 16,784,331

The Organization has a $400,000 line of credit that they could draw upon in the event of unanticipated liquidity
needs. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, there were no amounts outstanding on this line.
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE C: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FLACS N receives a management allocation from FLACS I, FLACS II, and FLACS III (the “Charter Schools™).
The Organization pays for certain operating expenses that benefit the entire organization and then allocates to
each Charter School a percentage of these expenses based on the full-time equivalent student enrollment at each
Charter School. FLACS N was allocated $1,138,543 from FLACS I, $2,261,307 from FLACS II, and $867,723
from FLACS III for the year ended June 30, 2022. FLACS N was allocated $1,085,180 from FLACS I,
$2,339,862 from FLACS II, and $670,915 from FLACS III for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Classrooms and office facilities of FLACS I are leased from LPAC, whose President is a member of the Board
of the Organization. See Note G for further details and future minimum lease payments. During the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Organization had approximately $46,000 and $52,000, respectively, of receivables
from LPAC.

The Organization is a guarantor of a mortgage in the name of LPAC. The term of the guarantee on the LPAC
mortgage is through January 2018, at which time an option to extend for an additional 5 years was granted, until
January 2023. The Organization would be required to pay the loan in the event of default and as of June 30, 2022
and 2021, the outstanding balance of the mortgage note is approximately $1,460,000 and $1,503,000,
respectively. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the maximum amount of future payments (undiscounted) the
Organization could be required to make under the guarantee is $2,269,000 and $2,378,000, respectively.

During December 2020, HB Foundation (“HB”), a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code was formed. HB is the sole member of Highbridge Facilities LLC (“Highbridge”).
Highbridge issued bonds to purchase the properties of FLACS II middle school, FLACS III and the property
where FLACS HS will be located. The Organization became the guarantor of the bonds. The aggregate principal
balance of the bonds at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was approximately $124,485,000 and $125,100,000, respectively.
At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the maximum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) the guarantor
could be required to make under the guarantee was approximately $267,776,162 and $277,858,307, respectively.
The Organization fully expects the bond payable will be repaid by Highbridge in accordance with its terms.

In connection with the bond agreement, the Organization must comply with certain covenants. The Organization
was in compliance with these covenants for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The lease agreements for the FLACS II middle school and FLACS III facilities were terminated in December

2020. In December 2020, the Organization entered into lease agreements with Highbridge for the FLACS 11
middle school, FLACS III and FLACS HS facilities. See Note G.
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
(With Comparative Totals for 2021)

NOTE D: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

June 30,
2022 2021
Leasehold improvements $ 4,793,497 $ 4,550,988
Furniture and fixtures 1,760,426 1,765,620
Computers and equipment 3,634,031 3,180,147
10,187,954 9,496,755
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 6,587,523 5,569,727

$ 3,600,431 $ 3,927,028

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, $422,269 and $297,269, respectively of construction in progress was included in
leasehold improvements; which was mainly for a future building project for FLACS HS and for improvements
to the FLACS II middle school facility expected to be utilized in the 2023 school year.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and put into use. Total depreciation and amortization expense was $1,042,324 and $1,001,315 for the

years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE E: CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

The Organization entered into a capital lease payable during November 2019, payable in annual installments,
including interest at .457% per annum, through August 2021. The capital lease payable is secured by certain
equipment. The capital lease had no balance outstanding as of June 30, 2022. The capital lease had $30,474
outstanding as of June 30, 2021.

The lease agreement is through August 2022 and is for the right to use certain equipment which is included in
property and equipment in the accompanying statement of financial position at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The net
book value of this equipment was $47,708 and $68,155 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Organization entered into a capital lease payable during July 2020, payable in annual installments, including
interest at .351% per annum, through August 2022. The capital lease payable is secured by certain equipment.
The capital lease had $53,843 and $107,214 outstanding as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The lease agreement is through July 2022 and is for the right to use certain equipment which is included in
property and equipment in the accompanying statement of financial position at June 30, 2022. The net book

value of this equipment was $80,340 and $133,901 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Interest expense related to the capital leases was $12,901 and $26,153 during the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021, respectively.
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d

JUNE 30, 2022
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NOTE E: CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE, Cont’d

The future maturities of the capital leases payable are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount

2023 $ 53,843

NOTE F: EQUIPMENT LEASES

The Organization leases office equipment under non-cancelable lease agreements expiring at various dates
through July 2024. The future minimum payments on these agreements are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2023 $ 62,330
2024 28.655
2025 2,388
$ 93,373

NOTE G: SCHOOL FACILITIES

FLACS I leased classrooms and office facilities under a non-cancelable lease agreement originally expiring in
June 2018. The lease was amended effective September 1, 2016 with an expiration date of June 30, 2022 and a
revised payment schedule. In June 2022, the lease was extended to September 30, 2022. FLACS I’s base rent
for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $1,068,947 and $1,037,811, respectively. The base rent increased
in accordance with the lease agreement. The total amount of rental payments due over the lease term is being
charged to rent expense on the straight-line method over the term of the lease. The difference between rent
expense recorded and the amount paid is credited or charged to “Deferred rent payable” in the accompanying
statement of financial position at June 30, 2022 and 2021. As of the report date, the Organization is still in
negotiations to renew this lease and paying on a month to month basis until an agreement is finalized.

Total rent expense relative to this lease was $993,577 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. In conjunction

with this facility lease, FLACS I paid a security deposit of $155,833 which is included in security deposits on the
accompanying statement of financial position at June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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NOTE G: SCHOOL FACILITIES, Cont’d

FLACS II leases classrooms and office facilities under a non-cancelable lease agreement expiring in June 2038
which they assumed from their former landlord effective January 2015. FLACS II’s base rent for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $641,053 and $616,397, respectively. The base rent increased in accordance with
the lease agreement. The total amount of rental payments due over the lease term is being charged to rent expense
on the straight-line method over the term of the lease. The difference between rent expense recorded and the
amount paid is credited or charged to “Deferred rent payable” in the accompanying statement of financial position
at June 30, 2022 and 2021. In connection with the assumption of this lease, the former landlord agreed to share
in the cost of FLACS II making certain leasehold improvements to the building in accordance with the terms of
the agreement. During the year ended June 30, 2022, $38,637 had been advanced to FLACS II in addition to
total advances of $585,877 made in prior years and are recorded as a “Deferred lease incentive” on the
accompanying statement of financial position. These reimbursements will be recognized as a reduction of rent
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Rent expense relative to this lease was $771,328 and
$774,157 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Also in conjunction with this facility lease,
FLACS II paid a security deposit of $163,477, as of June 30, 2019 and received a credit towards this deposit of
$14,005 during 2020, leaving a balance of $149,472 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, which is included in security
deposits on the accompanying statement of financial position at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The future minimum payments on this agreement are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount

2023 $ 666,695

2024 693,363

2025 721,098

2026 749,942

2027 779,939
Thereafter 10,939,278

$ 14,550,315

On August 11,2017, FLACS 11 signed a lease agreement with CG Educational Holdings, Inc. (“CG”) for a middle
school building. The lease had a twenty year term upon completion of the building. The certificate of occupancy
was issued April 30, 2019 and FLACS II had access to the building at that time. Rent payments commenced
July 1, 2019 and go through July 1, 2038. The original lease term was scheduled to end on June 30, 2039. The
lease with CG was terminated in December 2020. The deferred rent payable balance was written off and a gain
of $1,696,822 was recorded to “Gain on lease termination” in the accompanying statement of activities and
changes in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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NOTE G: SCHOOL FACILITIES, Cont’d

On December 22, 2020, FLACS 1I entered into a lease agreement for its middle school with Highbridge. Rent
payments commenced January 1, 2021 and go through June 30, 2055. FLACS II middle school’s base rent for
the year ended June 30, 2022 was $2,630,417. The base rent for the period January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021
was $993,760. The base rent increases in accordance with the lease agreement. The total amount of rental
payments due over the lease term is being charged to rent expense on the straight-line method over the term of
the lease. The difference between rent expense recorded and the amount paid was credited or charged to
“Deferred rent payable” in the accompanying statement of financial position at June 30, 2022 and 2021. During
the year ended June 30, 2022, a portion of the FLACS II facility was used for FLACS III students; therefore,
$263,042 of this base rent was allocated to FLACS TII. Rent expense relative to this lease was $2,620,644 and
$3,047,712, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

In connection with the Highbridge agreement, the lease requires certain covenants to be met. The Organization
was in compliance with these covenants for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The future minimum payments on this agreement are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount

2023 $ 2,684,608

2024 2,701,501

2025 2,707,408

2026 2,725,922

2027 2,654,028
Thereafter 73,314,570

$ 86,788,037

FLACS III leases classrooms and office facilities under an original lease agreement which was scheduled to
expire in August 2036. The lease with was terminated in December 2020. The deferred rent payable balance
was written off and a gain of $1,479,702 was recorded to “Gain on lease termination” in the accompanying
statement of activities and changes in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021.

On December 22, 2020, FLACS 111 entered into a lease agreement with Highbridge. Rent payments commenced
on January 1, 2021 and go through June 30, 2055. FLACS III’s base rent for the year ended June 30, 2022 was
$899,706. FLACS III’s base rent for the period January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021 was $340,224. The base
rent increased in accordance with the lease agreement. The total amount of rental payments due over the lease
term is being charged to rent expense on the straight-line method over the term of the lease. The difference
between rent expense recorded and the amount paid was credited or charged to “Deferred rent payable” in the
accompanying statement of financial position at June 30, 2022 and 2021. Rent expense was $893,393 and
$1,081,968 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

In connection with the Highbridge agreement, the lease requires certain covenants to be met. The Organization
was in compliance with these covenants for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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NOTE G: SCHOOL FACILITIES, Cont’d

The future minimum payments on this agreement are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount

2023 $ 922,965

2024 920,683

2025 924,939

2026 926,800

2027 899,072
Thereafter 24,987,664

$ 29,582,123

On December 22, 2020, FLACS HS entered into a lease agreement with Highbridge for a new school building as
described in Note C. The lease has a thirty five year term upon completion of the building, and payments are to
be determined upon completion of the building. The building is expected to be completed in July 2024. The
building was originally projected to be completed in September 2022. Even though the construction has been
delayed by two years, FLACS HS is required to make the originally scheduled payments.

The estimated future minimum payments on this agreement are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2023 $ 1,185,000
2024 2,316,000
2025 3,998,465
2026 5,023,465
2027 5,133,686
Thereafter 140,692,209

5 158.348.825

The total lease expense for all these leases, as outlined above, was approximately $5,279,000 and $5,923,000 for
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization sponsors a 401(k) plan (the “Plan”) for all eligible employees that are predominantly funded
by employees’ contributions. The Organization matches employees’ contributions up to 4% of their annual
salary. During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Organization contributed approximately $316,100
and $281,800, respectively, to the Plan.

NOTE I: CONTINGENCY

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in disallowance
of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Organization. Management is of the opinion that such disallowances,
if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have
been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential claims.

NOTE J: CONCENTRATIONS

At June 30, 2022, approximately 83% of grants and other receivables are due from the New York State
Department of Education relating to certain grants. During the year ended June 30, 2022, 69% of total operating
revenue and support came from per-pupil funding provided by New York State. The per-pupil rate is set annually
by the State based on the school district in which the Organization’s students are located.

At June 30, 2021, approximately 98% of grants and other receivables are due from the New York State
Department of Education relating to certain grants. During the year ended June 30, 2021 , 78% of total operating
revenue and support came from per-pupil funding provided by New York State. The per-pupil rate is set annually
by the State based on the school district in which the Organization’s students are located.

NOTE K: NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions are as follows:

June 30,
2022 2021
Undesignated $ 15,395,307 $ 10,041,033
Invested in property and equipment, net of related debt 3,546,588 3,789,340

$ 18,941,895 $ 13,830,373
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NOTE K: NET ASSETS, Cont’d

Net assets with donor restrictions are as follows:

June 30,
2022 2021
Music program $ 4,659 $ 5,816
Wellness program 2,141 2,141
Display boards - 15,000
High school project 15,000 -
Rental assistance 375,000 375,000
Middle school art curriculum 835 835
High school placement program 6,930 97,836
Middle school yoga class 1,000 -
Healthy farm box project - 4,125
K-2 home library project - 10,819
Professional development program 2,825 4,350

$ 408,390 § 515922

NOTE L: LINE OF CREDIT

In July 2018, the Organization entered into a line of credit agreement with a bank with maximum borrowings of
$400,000. The line bears interest at the prime rate plus 2% per annum and is secured primarily by the assets of
the Organization. There was no balance outstanding at June 30, 2022 or 2021. The line expires in November
2022.

NOTE M: LONG TERM DEBT

In response to the COVID-19 outbreak, in April 2020 the Organization applied for and was approved by a bank
for a loan of $2,571,523 through the Paycheck Protection Program established by the Small Business
Administration. The loan has a maturity of 2 years and an interest rate of 1%. The loan had the potential for
forgiveness provided certain requirements were met by the Organization. The loan was funded on May 5, 2020.
Due to the potential of forgiveness, repayment terms had not been finalized as of June 30, 2021; therefore, the
entire balance had been classified as long-term at June 30, 2021. On August 25, 2021, the loan was forgiven in
full, plus any accrued interest. The forgiveness of the loan is shown in the accompanying statement of activities
and changes in net assets as Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness.

NOTE N: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program or
supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied.
All expenses that are allocated to more than one program or supporting function are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort.
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NOTE O: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash balances at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consisted of the following:

June 30,
2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,511,734 $ 12,555,701
Cash in escrow 175,000 175,000

$ 13,686,734 $ 12,730,701

NOTE P: ACCOUNTING IMPACT OF COVID-19 OUTBREAK

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because
of a new strain of coronavirus (the “COVID-19 outbreak™) and the risks to the international community as the
virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak
as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally. The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak
continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude that the pandemic
will have on the Organization’s financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations. Management is
actively monitoring the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and
workforce. Given the daily evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the
Organization is not able to estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial
condition, or liquidity for fiscal year 2023.

In response to the COVID-19 outbreak, the Federal Government passed several COVID relief acts which include
funding for elementary and secondary education. The Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund
(ESSER Fund) was established to award grants to state and local educational agencies. The Organization has
recognized $2,926,570 and $737,354 of revenue relative to ESSER grants during the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

The Emergency Connectivity Fund (ECF) was also established to award grants to state and local educational

agencies. The Organization has recognized $338,011 of revenue relative to ECF grants during the year ended
June 30, 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON OTHER FINANCIAT INFORMATION

Board of Trustees
Family Life Academy Charter Schools

We have audited the financial statements of Family Life Academy Charter Schools as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20. 2022, which contained an unmodified opinion on
those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The financial information hereinafter is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2022, as a whole.

Plonged] WM;’(&. L4P

Rochester, New York
October 20, 2022
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FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

REPORT TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

JUNE 30, 2022




October 20, 2022

Finance Committee
Family Life Academy Charter Schools

We have audited the financial statements of Family Life Academy Charter Schools as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20, 2022. Professional standards require that we
advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated June 15, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve
you or management of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we
considered the internal control of Family Life Academy Charter Schools solely for the purpose of determining our
audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.



Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. Safeguards in place to eliminate or reduce threats to independence to an
acceptable level include a skilled, knowledgeable and experienced CFO and Controller who review the draft
financial statements prior to issuance and accept responsibility for them.

Significant Risks Identified

We have identified the following significant risks:
e Management override
e Revenue recognition
e Improper allocation of expenses to grants

e  Misappropriation of assets

Professional auditing standards require that we identify and assess risks and design and perform our audit
procedures to assess those risks. The identification of a risk does not mean that it has occurred, but rather it has the
potential to impact the financial statements.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by Family Life Academy Charter Schools is included in Note A to the financial
statements. As described in Note A to the financial statements, during the year, the Organization adopted new
guidance for gifts-in-kind (ASU 2020-07). No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under
professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and
(2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the collectability of grants and other
receivables, as well as the allocation of costs for the statement of functional expenses. We evaluated the key factors
and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.



Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Family Life Academy Charter
Schools’ financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition and lease commitments, which are referred
to in the notes of the financial statements.

Identified or Suspected Fraud

We have not identified or obtained information that indicates that fraud may have occurred.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit.
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. No such misstatements were identified during our audit.
Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be
significant to Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such
disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management
representation letter.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters.
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding
auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with Family Life Academy Charter Schools, we generally
discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business
conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement.
None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Family Life Academy Charter Schools’
auditors.



Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period. and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to
our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Sylest Williams will be happy to
meet with you at your convenience.

This letter is intended solely for the use of management, Finance Committee Members and the Board of Trustees of
Family Life Academy Charter Schools and should not be distributed to any other persons or used for any other

purpose.
Very truly yours,

longed WM:& L4P

MENGEL. METZGER. BARR & CO. LLP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Family Life Academy Charter Schools

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Family Life Academy Charter Schools, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated October 20, 2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Family Life Academy Charter
Schools’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit
and, accordingly. we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

onged] WM%Q Lif

Rochester, New York
October 20, 2022



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees
Family Life Academy Charter Schools

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. Family
Life Academy Charter Schools’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Family Life Academy Charter Schools complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Family Life Academy Charter Schools and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Family Life Academy Charter Schools’
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.



Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Family Life Academy
Charter Schools’ federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Family Life
Academy Charter Schools’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it
exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user of the report on compliance about Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ compliance with the requirements
of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance,
we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Family Life Academy Charter Schools’ internal control over compliance
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Family Life Academy Charter Schools’
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly. this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of Family Life Academy Charter Schools as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20, 2022, which contained an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures. including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial

statements as a whole.
W Metygs, St 7 Co. Lbf

Rochester, New York
October 20, 2022



FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Federal Pass-through Total
AL Grantor's Federal
Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through New York State Education Department:
Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0021 $ 863,064
Title ITA - Improving Teacher Quality 84.367 0147 101,002
Title III, Part A - English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 0293 40,854
Title IV, Part A - Student Support and Academic
Enrichment Program 84.424 0204 59,781
Charter Schools Program - Grants for Replication and
Expansion of High-Quality Charter Schools 84.282M U282M170049 456,428
Education Stabilization Funds -
ESSER II - Elementary and Secondary School
Emergency Relief Fund 84.425D 5891 1,282,194
ARP ESSER - American Rescue Plan-Elementary
and Secondary School Emergency Relief 84.425U 5880 1,644,376
Total Education Stabilization Funds 2,926,570
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 4,447,699
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through New York State Education Department:
Child Nutrition Cluster
School Breakfast Program 10.553 1000001406 271,699
National School Lunch Program 10.555 1000001406 588,523
Supply Chain Assistance - COVID 10.555 1000001406 31,059
Emergency Operational Cost - COVID 10.555 1000001406 147,621
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 1,038,902
State Pandemic Electronic Benefit Transfer (P-EBT)
Administrative Cost Grant 10.649 1000001406 2,404
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 1,041,306
Federal Communications Commission:
Passed through the Universal Service
Administrative Company
Emergency Connectivity Fund Program-COVID 32.009 226316 87,155
Emergency Connectivity Fund Program-COVID 32.009 16067230 184,292
Emergency Connectivity Fund Program-COVID 32.009 16076310 66,564
TOTAL FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS
COMMISSION 338,011
TOTAL ALL PROGRAMS $ 5,827,016



FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS, Cont’d

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE A: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Family
Life Academy Charter Schools and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE B: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Family Life Academy Charter Schools has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.



FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

*  Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

»  Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

*  Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? yes X no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

*  Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

»  Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

*  Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: Unmodified

*  Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no

Identification of major federal program:

AL Number: Name of Federal Program or Cluster:
84.425D 84.425U ESSER I ARP ESSER
10.553  10.555 Child Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no

-10-



FAMILY LIFE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, Cont’d

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None.

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None.

-11 -



Certificate of Occupancy

Buildings
~ CO Number: 220307709F

This certifies that the premises described herein conforms substantially to the approved plans and specifications and to the
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document or a copy shall be available for inspection at the
building at all reasonable times.

A. | Borough: Bronx , Block Number: 02344 l Certificate Type: Final
i | Lot Number(s): 110 | Effective Date:  02/24/2017
' Building Identification Number (BIN): 2001028 | ]
| ! Building Type: 1 ‘ |
. Altered 'i ’ .‘

This building is subject to this Building Code: 1968 Code

|

. For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb.

|-

B. ( Construction classification: 3 (Prior to 1968 Code designation)
| Building Occupancy Group classification: E (2014/2008 Code)
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No ;;;oriés: 4 Heightin feet: 55 o vao of dv;elilgg_ units: O

C.  Fire Protection Equipment:
Fire alarm system, Sprinkler system

D. Type and number of open spaces:
| None associated with this filing.

E. . This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations:
' None

: Borough Comments: None

: Lot Garil

Borough Commissioner Commissioner
DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE
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Page 2 of 3

Certificate of Occupancy

Permissible Usg and Oqu_p_a_rl_cy

CO Number: 220307709F

_AII Bﬁlding Codgéééhpé'héy éroup aeAsigﬁnations' belq\ywarei 2008 Vd-ésrign-aiiar.lﬁs: B

R

Building !
Maximum |Live load Code

. Floor persons |lbs per

From To permitted sq. ft. group
CEL 3 0G S2
CEL 4 0G B
CEL 0 0G u
CEL 9 0G E
CEL 7 0G F-2

i =

001 001 25 100 E

|

{001 001 18 100 B

3 E
001 001 2 100 S2
001 001 121 100 A-3
001 0010 100 U
002 002 0 100 U
002 002 107 100 E
003 003 107 100 E

Dwelling or

occupancy <Rooming Zoning

Units use group ' Description of use
3

B

Borough Commissioner

Commissioher )
DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE
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Buildings
CO Number: 220307709F

Permissible Use and Occupancy

Al Buildih_g—c_gde occupancy g_r_d\v._ifa_r_t_iesi_:g_ni’c’ién_siﬁeflo“; are 2008 dégiahations.
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| Maximum Live load | Code { Dwelling or| ;
Floor persons lbs per occupancy ' Rooming | Zoning
From To permitted sq. fi. group Units | use group_ Description of use
003 003 107 100 U 3
004 004 107 100 E 3
004 004 107 100 U 3
ROF 0 U 3
S . __ ENDOF SECTION

ve. g Tk C’,M

_Baiuéh Commissioner Commissioner
END OF DOCUMENT 220307709/000 2/24/2017 12:42:46 PM
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ccmphcdwzthuc:ttxﬁedby repoct of the Fire Commissioner to the Borough Superistendent. S k-

FRXamAll No— 92’7—'-5'7 it ¢ . - Construction d"s"ﬁ"'“’*!lono-ﬂrep‘r\oof
Occupancy dassification— Commercial . Height 4 & Cellar storics, 55 fect.
Date of compietion— Al ~57 . Loated in.  Bnrestricted Use District.
“KoAren§ “léas TR Hoght Zone at time of igsuance of peomit
e«hﬁnhnwedwbncthdnhmﬂhmﬁﬁtpedﬁedmdtothofoﬂvwwm
lunouof!hal!oard Standards and Appeals: fCalendar sumbers t be inserted here)

PERMISSIBLE USE AND OCCUPANCY

'PE ACCOMMODATED |

Cellax

Pirst -

fecond

Third

oil insta_llat}_cn received.

RS

Bar\bugh Superintendent
CERT!F!CATE WlLL DE MULL AND YOID IF ALTERED IN ANY MANNER OR ADDITIONS ARE MADE THE'!EI"O
(Page 1)




NO CHANGES OF USE OR OCCUPANCY NOT CONSISTENT WITH THIS CERTIFICATE SHALL
BE MADE UNLESS FIRST Armovx-:ni BY THE BOROUGH SUPERINTENDENT. -

Unless an approval for the same has been obtained from the, Borough Superintendest,. zo changc or
rearrangement in the structural parts of the building. or affecting the light and ventilation of any part thereof,
or in the exit facilities. shall be made; no culargement, whether by extending on any side or by increasing in

heigiik shall be made: nor aball the building be moved from one location. e position ta another:. zor shall there §

be any reduction or dmmumm of thc aren of the lot or p!zt o whicb the bu'!dmg iy 1c<atcv.l.

o
o - i e ;

I - s

The hm"kirm: or any part thereof sh:m rot be used for any purpose other than that for wiich it is certified.

The :mpmmpos«t :inuormty distributed loads, or concemm«l loads prixiating the same strr.'.scs in the

mmchmmanysmrysi'nn-notexcccdmclwcloadsspec:ﬁcdbnr«e«cvdc'thcnmr.buoimdwhu

summystmshunotcmccdthatspmﬁcdwhmwmmdlmtd vor shall the aggregate number of perzons
in any. story exeeed the specified total;.and the use to which any story may be putshall be restricted to that fited
by thxs cemﬁmte except as. spcczﬁully st:ncd. ) )

. This ccruﬁwcgg::-:ot in any way mhmﬂ:emvcrorowncrsormy o.herpemmpersonsmpmon
or control of the buildinr. «r any part thereof from obtaining such ether permits, licenses or approvals as may
be prescribed by Taw for the uses or purposes for which the building is designed or Tatended; mor from obtaining
the special- cersificates required for: the use and speration: of elevators: nor’ from the installation of fire-alarm
systems where required by law; nor from cowmplying wirh any fawful’ ordder for additiona? “fire’ mzxgnufnﬂ;;
appliances under the disoretionzry powers of the fire commissioner: nor {rom complying with any lawfid order
issued with the object of maintaining the building: fn 2 Sfc or lawhul vondition: nor from complying with any
guthorized direction (ommmmdmemsmtoapuahcingbmycro:hcrputncpm whether attached to
or part of the building or not.

bi3 tlua certificate is m:u'ked “Temporary”, it is applicable only to thosc pasts .of the hmidmgmdicn:d
onﬂshee,an«.eu‘t:ﬁmtoﬁaekga!mudompmcyofnn}ysncbpartsofwebmldmg ﬂAsxb;actma!!the
and conditions applying to a final or petmanent certificate; it is not applicable manybuildmgmd’:rﬂ:c
juxisdiction of the Housing D:ﬁaoamlaaﬁualsoapprovedandcndomdb\-mm:,.andxtmustberephced
by 2 full certificate at the date of expimation. ;

16 this certificate i for an existing brilding, erected prior $6 March 19, 1016, it ks becs duly inspesied
and it hos been found to have becnoccupledora:mngmwkmpxdpnnrtu March 14, 1916, as noted on

the reverse side, and that on information and belief, sincc that date there has been no alteralion or converdion BN

to a use that changed its classification as defined in the Building Code, or that would necessitate compliance with
mwﬂwmmmswhbmhwermmhworor&m that thens are Do notioes

of violations or orders pending in the Dep of Buildiogs at this time; that Scction 646F of the New York City
(}mwba.bmwmphedmthaswnﬁe&bvampoﬂdtbzf‘re Compnissioner to the Borough Superintendent,

and that, 56 long as the building is Dot altered, pt by permission of the Borcugh Superintendent, :!:eenﬁmg -

use and occupancy may be continued.

“5646}". No cauﬁateol oempency shaﬂbe:ssnedform’s‘bm'ld‘ng shmtnrc.mp!aocor
for combustibles, che=zical bles and other dangerous substances,
arhdes,mpmndsormmmmarcstmd,ofwbuuuautombcormhu'ﬁreahnnswtmorﬁn:
are required by law to be or are installed, until the fire commissioner bas tested and inspected and bas
cuhﬁedhi:ayprovalmwntmgoéthcmstﬂknonofsmhmwnm‘WstumvrtqummttotbeBm‘ougb
Superintendent of the borough in which the fnstallation has bem made. Such approval shalt be recorded om
the certificate of occupancy.” - )

Additional copies of this cortificeoe will be fumisbed to pomecns baving -nbm-:m:khm..—
Premises, Bpon payment of o fee of Sty cente par copy,




Family Life Academy Charter Schools 2022-2023 Elementary and Middle School Calendar

July 2022
S M T w S
1 2
3 |4 5 6 7 8 9
10 |1 12 13 14 15 16
17 |18 19 20 21 22 23
24 (25 26 27 28 29 30
August 2022
S M T w S
31 (1 2 g 4 5 6
7 |8 9 10 1 12 13
14 |15 16 17 18 19 20
21 |22 23 24 25 26 27
28 (29 30 31
September 2022
S M T w T S
1 2 3
4 5 6 17 2(8 3[9 4(10
11 (12 5(13 6|14 7|15 8|16 9|17
18 (19 10(20 11]21 12|22 13|23 14|24
25 (26 27 28 15|29 16(30 171

22-31 Prof Dev./
No Students

1-2 Prof Dev./
No Students
5 Labor Day
6 1st Day of School
26-27 No School/
Rosh Hashanah

January 2023

S M w T F S

1 3 7214 (5 7416 5|7

8 76(10 77|11 78|12 79(13 80 |14

15 [16 17 81|18 82|19 83(20 84 |21

22 |23 85|24 86|25 87(26 88|27 89 |28

29 |30 31 9

February 2023

S M w T F S
1 9112 9|3 9|4

5 6 9|7 9[8 99 97|10 98 (11

12 |13 99|14 100(15 101|16 102|17 103 (18

19 |20 21 22 23 24 25

26 |27 28 104

March 2023

S M w T F S
1 105/ 2 1063 1074

5 6 108] 7 1098 11019 11110 112(11

12 |13 13|14 11415 115|116 16|17 117 (18

19 |20 118]21 119 23 12124 122 (25

26 |27 123(28 124(29 12530 126|31 127

2 No School/
Winter Break
16 No School/
MLK Jr. Day
30 No School Students/
Prof. Dev. Staff

20-24 No School/
Mid-Winter Break
27 No School Students/
Prof. Dev. Staff

22 1/2 Day Students
Parent Conferences

S M T w T S
2 |3 18/4 195 6 20(7 218
9 |10 11 22(12 23(13 24|14 25|15
16 (17 26(18 27|19 28|20 28|21 30|22
23 |24 31|25 32(26 33|27 34|28 35(29
30 (31 36

5 No School/
Yom Kippur
10 No School/
Ind. Peoples Day

S M w T F S

1
2 B4 =[5 w[6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 |17 131|18 132(19 133(20 134]|21 22
23 |24 135(25 136|26 137|27 138|28 139 |29

3 Lottery Day
6-14 No School/
Spring Break
21 No School/Eid al-Fitr

S M T w T S
1 3712 383 39[4 405
6 7 418 9 42(10 43|11 12
13 (14 44|15 45|16 46(17 47|18 48|19
20 (21 49(22 50(23 51|24 25 26
27 |28 52|29 53(30 54
December 2022
S M T w T S
1 552 56(3
4 5 5716 587 598 60[9 61(10
1 [12 e2[13 o [MNBA[15 5[16 co[17
18 (19 6720 68|21 69|22 70|23 71|24
25 (26 27 28 29 30 31

8 No School Students
Prof. Dev. Staff
11 No School/
Veterans Day
24-25 No School/
Thanksgiving

14 1/2 day for Students
Parent Conferences
26-30 No School/
Winter Break

S M w T F S
1 1402 1413 14214 143| 5 144 6
7 8 45| 9 146[10 147|11 14812 149 [13
14 |15 150|16 15117 152|18 153|19 154 (20
21 22 155(23 156|24 157(25 158|26 159 |27
28 |29 30 160(31 161
June 2023
S M w T F S
1 162(2 163| 3
4 5 164| 6 165(7 166/ 8 167] 9 168 (10
11 |12 169|13 70|14 171|15 172|16 173 (17
18 [19 20 74|21 175(22 17623 177 |24
25 |26 178|27 179(28 29 30

29 No School/
Memorial Day

19 No School/
Juneteenth
27 Last Day of School
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